
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

CULTURE AND VISITOR ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

to be held on
THURSDAY, 24 JANUARY 2019

at
7.00 PM

in
STUDIO 1, THE GUILDHALL ARTS CENTRE, ST PETER'S HILL, 

GRANTHAM.  NG31 6PZ
Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Linda Wootten

Councillor Bob Adams (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Rachael Cooke
Councillor Tracey Forman

Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor David Taylor
Councillor Paul Wood

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

Support Officer:
Anita Eckersley

Tel:      01476 406517
E-mail: a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3  APOLOGIES 

4  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at 
the meeting.

5  ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 15 NOVEMBER 2018 
(Pages 3 - 10)



6  UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

7  CULTURAL STRATEGY ENGAGEMENT - PROGRESS AND 
CONSULTATION (Pages 11 - 23)

Report of The Leader of the Council.

8  SCOPING SPORTS DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES (Pages 25 - 28)

Report of The Leader of the Council.

9  VISITOR ECONOMY ACTIVITIES (Pages 29 - 33)

Report of the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy.

10  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES DECIDES IS URGENT 



MEETING OF THE
CULTURE AND VISITOR 
ECONOMY OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2018, 
7.00 PM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Tracey Forman
Councillor David Taylor
Councillor Paul Wood
Councillor Linda Wootten (Chairman)
Councillor Ray Wootten

OFFICERS

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Head of Arts (Michael Cross)
Head of Visitor Economy (Andrew Norman) 
Heritage Regeneration Officer (Claire Sanders)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)

66. MEMBERSHIP
The Committee were notified that Councillor Ray Wootten was substituting for 
Councillor Bob Adams.

67. APOLOGIES
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Rachael Cooke.  
Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor Lee, the Leader 
and Councillor Robins, the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy.

68. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
None disclosed.

3

Agenda Item 5



69. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 13 SEPTEMBER 2018
The action notes from the meeting held on 13 September 2018 were agreed, 
however the Chairman asked for clarity in relation to the cost to facilitate the 
Gravity Fields festival.  Was the £140,000 SKDC match funding on top of the 
£89,700 Arts Council funding.  The Head of Arts Council indicated that he 
understood that was the case but he would seek clarification from the 
Corporate Operations Lead.

70. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The CEO InvestSK informed the Committee that the Heritage Regeneration 
Officer had been in dialogue with Councillor Stevens in relation to the 
Deepings Literacy Festival to try and arrange a suitable date to discuss how 
all heritage activity in the Deepings could be linked in to festivals as they are 
being developed.

71. PROPOSED DELIVERY PLAN FOR CULTURE & ARTS ACTIVITY TO THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND AN OUTLINE OF PROPOSALS FOR 
2019-20
The Committee received a presentation on the proposed delivery plan for 
Culture and Arts activity for the remainder of 2018/19 and proposals for 
2019/20.   Arts, culture and heritage played an important part in driving social, 
economic and civic regeneration.  It contributed to civic identity and social 
cohesion and promoted new skills and opportunities as well as enhancing the 
quality of life and making a fundamental difference to making areas a better 
place to live. 

The Head of Arts then spoke about the three main areas that were being 
focused on in relation to culture and arts activity.  The delivery of the Cultural 
Strategy was the main priority although the delivery angle had been “flipped” 
to carry out more public engagement to inform the content of the document.  
Consultation events with strategic partners, stakeholders and practitioners had 
been arranged in the four market towns on the dates below before more 
general consultation with the public were carried out:

23 January 2019 – Stamford – venue Stamford Arts Centre
29 January 2019 – Grantham – venue Guildhall Arts Centre
31 January 2019 – Bourne – venue Bourne Corn Exchange
Provisional 12 February 2019 – The Deepings – venue TBC

The broader remit of sports and science were still a priority to be included with 
the Cultural Strategy.

Other areas where work was being carried out was to directly fund local 
cultural organisations over a three year period. The fund was to help 
organisations to deliver activities, build capacity over a sustained period to 
enable future self-sustainability and provide equipment or activity 
infrastructure.   An example was given of work being undertaken with Bourne 
Town Hall and their heritage lottery bid.  Also proposed was the introduction of 

4



a discretionary award for grants up to a maximum of £500 for equipment or 
other support, to help ensure an event or activity could be delivered.

Also being planned was a series of “Expo” style events with schools during 
March 2019 to include creative engagement workshops to encourage both 
pupil and resident participation.   Colleagues helping with these events 
included the Chief Executive from Inspire+ who was contacting headmasters 
around the district not just in the four main towns but also rural areas.  One 
Member asked about the objective of the engagement format, who was 
involved. The Head of Arts replied that it was hoped that the events would 
take place in afternoons and parents would be encouraged to pick up their 
children earlier so that they could be shown what their children had been 
doing and it would be an opportunity to speak to both parents and school staff.   
It was hoped that from the consultation events areas of similar concern would 
become apparent, or new events could be identified where assistance to 
deliver the event could be given. It would be a broad brush approach and 
Members would be invited to attend the events proposed.  

A discussion then followed the presentation.   Issues discussed by the 
Committee included:

 Lack of progress to date and the current position with the Cultural 
Strategy.

 Confirmation that residents should help to drive the Strategy forward 
and inform its content.

 Specific measurable objectives needed to be set – KPi’s.
 There was a Cultural Strategy currently in place but it was not up to 

date and was coming to the end of its life.
 Public engagement was seen as very important and most of this was 

scheduled to happen during Spring/Summer 2019.  It was hoped that 
by Autumn 2019 broad brush comments and terminology would have 
been put together with realistic measures ready for 2020.

 Any Strategy needed to be constantly evolving.
 A programme of events was needed.
 Each market town had their own specific strengths and it was getting to 

know these individually and how they were part of a collective SKDC 
offer.

 In order to move forward quicker other means of collecting information 
should be looked into such as using survey monkey and questionnaires 
– a questionnaire was being worked on but the language used needed 
to be relevant and understood by residents.

 Information on what was deliverable was needed and a commitment to 
follow that through

 £500 grants were one off provisions within the budget to help bespoke 
pieces of work seen as priorities.  It was to support organisations to 
continue longer term - building capacity, legacy and longevity to include 
equipment and infrastructure both individually and as groups.  

5



 Officers acknowledged the need for timelines to be known. 
 The Cultural Strategy would be an evolving document. The feedback 

from the consultation would determine the actions needed to be 
contained within the strategy to deliver the outcomes.

 Sport would be part of the Strategy - currently sports activity was at a 
distance and it was how more meaningful engagement took place.  A 
sports development officer post was to be advertised shortly to help 
with engagement in this sector. 

 Mention was made of the different number of nationalities within the 
district and how they could be engaged with – reference was made to 
the Bridge project which could hopefully be used as a community 
catalyst.

 It was hoped that links could be made between the different strands of 
the Strategy and an example was given in relation to Wyndham Park in 
Grantham with both sports and heritage activities.

 A query was made about sport being part of the Cultural Strategy but it 
was stated that sport had always sat within the culture portfolio and 
reference was made to the proposed cycling festival next year which 
was a classic example of a sporting context.

 Sports was much wider than what was offered through the leisure 
centres and was a big part of the visitor economy.  Examples were 
given of the park runs at Burghley Park and Belton House where there 
was a crossover between heritage and sports.

In concluding his presentation the Head of Arts indicated that the Bridge 
project would continue to be part of the 2019/20 programme and the message 
would be taken across the district as a catalyst for conversation.   Areas such 
as the CiCLE festival at Bourne would be highlighted together with other 
interim arts involvement and engagement such as Music in Quiet Places 
locations, youth theatre and outdoor offers. In relation to the Sciences, 
conversations were taking place with Woolsthorpe by Colsterworth, the home 
of Sir Isaac Newton, a small science festival was proposed in Bourne and 
dialogue was taking place with the Kings School, Grantham, continuing the 
Sciences outside of the Gravity Fields Festival.

The Chairman thanked the Head of Arts for his presentation.

72. PROPOSED DELIVERY PLAN FOR HERITAGE ACTIVITY FOR 2018-19 
AND AN OUTLINE OF PROPOSALS FOR 2019-20
The Heritage Regeneration Officer gave a presentation to the Committee on 
the delivery of a programme which celebrated heritage within the district. The 
district had a rich and diverse heritage with a large number of listed buildings 
and the second highest number of Grade II listed buildings within the district. 
Historically both Grantham and Stamford had been Royal boroughs and, with 
over a 1,000 years of history this has helped to shape the towns and 
communities that we live in today.   The heritage programme would focus on 
three strands:

6



- Celebrating our Heritage
- Enabling communities to utilise and access their heritage assets 
- Delivering selected interventions to further the wider aims of InvestSK 

and SKDC

In celebrating heritage within the district, highlights of the wide diversity 
needed to be made from individual statues to grand historic buildings and their 
historic connections.  The enabling programme was to really engage with local 
communities to utilize the assets that they had to support their community.  
Intervention would be to deliver programmes where there was a strategic 
priority for South Kesteven, to bring groups together to drive a process 
forward.

The Heritage Regeneration Officer then spoke on each individual strand.  The 
Heritage Alive website would continue to be developed, to explore stories 
around the intangible heritage. There would be the creation of a celebratory 
book highlighting the people and places within South Kesteven and promoting 
the district beyond the boundaries of individual places for both residents and 
visitors.  Wayfinding guides to explain the historic environment in context 
including blue plaque guides compiled by Civic Societies.  Digital solutions 
were also being explored for heritage interpretation.    Reference was made to 
rural areas and how heritage assets could be utilized for a wider audience not 
just within the boundaries of the area in which they were situated. The 
Heritage Strategy would work alongside the cultural strategy and the visitor 
economy agenda.    A Heritage Alive! small grants fund was in place to 
support constituted groups, charities, schools and places of worship to 
discover, interpret and preserve their heritage, there was no desire to dictate 
to the communities what they should do with their heritage assets. The grant 
was there to help with interpretation, commissioning and research. There were 
three grant tiers.

Intervention was where InvestSK could help deliver programmes where main 
stream funding was difficult to get. InvestSK would directly assist to help 
access services and other funding and support. The application forms were 
designed to be as clear as possible with turnaround times as quick as 
possible.  The grant scheme had been officially launched at the recent 
Business and Economic summit.   

The Lincoln Diocesan had been the first people to have a development officer 
to review how churches were used as community assets.  South Kesteven 
District Council was a cold spot for this.  It was acknowledged that 
Lincolnshire was a large County but it was how we could actively engage with 
rural churches to encourage them to be open more rather than just on 
Sundays and Christmas days as they were a large heritage asset.  It was 
proposed to hold workshops to help understand the maintenance and care 
required for these vulnerable buildings.  Other areas where intervention was 
being looked at was Master planning of the Grantham Heritage Quarter to 

7



identify how existing and future programmes of funding could be best applied.  
As part of the project support would be given to the St Wulfram’s regeneration 
project.     Work done in relation to the project would be used to help projects 
undertaken elsewhere in the district.

One Member commented on the lack of car parking available especially 
around the St Wulframs church area which did have an impact.  It was stated 
that car parking would be looked at in relation to heritage work.

Work was also being done on the feasibility of having a Heritage Skills Centre 
which would promote traditional skills such as stone masonry, lime plastering 
and horticulture and to have the opportunity to train in these skills to enable 
them to be used in a sustainable manner within the district.

Further discussion took place around the grants available which ranged from 
£500, £2,000 and £4,000.  A question was asked about budget and it was 
confirmed that for the current year the budget was £45,000 and next year it 
was £35,000.   

A Member asked about the Heritage Alive! website and who it was directed at, 
was this organisations or individuals, in his view he felt it was more of a tool 
for organisations, with only the volunteer board being aimed at individuals.  It 
was stressed that the website would be run in parallel to the Visitor Economy 
website, the Heritage Alive! Website was not a visitor destination website 
more of an understanding of the historic area.  There would be links between 
both websites to enable people to search interesting places it was not 
proposed to duplicate information, it was a resource tool.  A request was 
made to have more information circulated in relation to website promotion and 
the promotion of the grant scheme as well as the number of visitor hits to the 
next meeting.

 Action Note

That information on website promotion and visitor hits be circulated at 
the next meeting of the Committee.

73. VISITOR ECONOMY
The Head of Visitor Economy gave an update to the Committee on work being 
undertaken in connection with visitor economy.   Initially a trailer had been 
rented but then a specific one had been secured.  It had been out about 25 
times both locally and elsewhere in the County including Leicestershire. The 
trailer had proven popular with the public and was being outfitted with Wi-Fi 
and satellite capabilities, it was an effective marketing tool for the visitor 
economy.

Another hugely effective marketing tool was the new website which was due 
to be up and running in the following week. The website would include 
accommodation, places to eat, places to visit and walks to take. It would also 

8



be geared towards groups visiting the market towns. Work was being done 
with Civic Societies and Deepings Heritage to help develop itineraries.    
Routes were being developed for walking and cycling and work was being 
carried out with churches to help them to become more visitor attractive in the 
wider countryside arena.

The Head of Visitor Economy then read out some statistics in relation to hits 
on the current website which had been compiled by STEAM. The website had 
received 62,000 visits in the last 12 months.   From 1 May there had been a 
41% increase year on year of hits on the website.  From the end of July 2017 
there had been a £10m increase, employment was up and visitor footfall had 
increased to 4.4m which was a 23% increase.

Work was continuing on the visitor guide which was due to be published in 
mid-December.  Advertising within the document had received good support 
and the guide had some good photography within in and an events section.  
An Instagram account had been set up and work was being done in relation to 
having a Facebook account and Twitter account.

The RAF Centenary celebrations had been popular with walks in both North 
Witham and Caythorpe. Four visits had taken place to St Vincent’s, the 
Lincolnshire headquarters of bomber command and 620 tickets had been sold 
for the RAF 100 concert in St Wulfram’s Church featuring the Band of the RAF 
College and the Cranwell Military Wives Choir on 16 November 2018.  At the 
concert the violin of Albert Ball VC would be played for only the second time 
during the second half of the concert. The concert would be filmed so could be 
watched on line.

Work was also being done in relation to the Bourne CiCLE Festival which 
would take place over two days on 31 August and 1 September 2019. The 
festival would include skateboarding and BMX racing as well as penny-
farthing racing.  The course was fantastic and challenging and a lot of 
planning was being done in relation to the event.

A general discussion then followed with one Member referring to the arrival by 
train at Grantham station and how unwelcoming it was.  The CEO InvestSK 
indicated that work was being done under the wayfinding project to have a 
monolith situated at the station to indicate where a person was, which way to 
go, places of interest etc.   Other work was being done in relation to heritage 
trails within the district in relation to walking, cycling and driving.
Another Member asked whether Downtown was involved with the visitor 
economy and the Head of Visitor Economy replied that they had given wall 
space within the first floor of the garden centre to support visitor economy.  

Further discussion followed including the Explorers Road A1 project which 
was due to launch at the end of March 2019, cycling routes in connection with 
Cycle England. Brown signs for Stamford which had been applied for and 
would be determined in six weeks by Lincolnshire Highways Authority. If this 

9



was approved the application would then go to Highways England for 
determination and this took 12 weeks approximately.

A short discussion then followed with Members asking clarification on any 
quality marks in connection with Bed and Breakfasts and the new website.  A 
Member requested that at the following meeting information on the website to 
be circulated in connection with how well it was working, what people were 
searching for, what was popular etc.

Members were then shown a short video which highlighted what South 
Kesteven had to offer.  The video was available to view on the following link: 
https://youtu.be/HIYfNXLMuX8

The Chairman thanked all Members and Officers for attending the meeting 
and reminded Members that following the cancellation of the February 
meeting a provisional meeting date had been arranged for Thursday 24th 
January.  The Chairman asked that once the Cultural Strategy had been 
established, if it could be possible for a future work programme to be included 
on the agenda.

74. CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting closed at 9:15pm.

10

https://youtu.be/HIYfNXLMuX8


CULTURE AND VISITOR ECONOMY  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee, 
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

24 January 2019

Cultural Strategy Engagement – Progress & Consultation 
(iSK0011)

Decision
Proposal: Overview and Scrutiny Report 

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee 
The Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Michael Cross, Head of Arts, Invest SK 
E-mail: michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk  Tel: 01476 406129        
Date: 2 January 2019

Steve Bowyer, Chief Executive Officer – Invest SK
E-mail: Steve.bowyer@investsk.co.uk    Tel: 01476 406175        
Date: 8 January 2019

Paul Thomas, Strategic Director
E-mail: P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk  Tel: 01476 406162         
Date: 11 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council
E-mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 11 January 2019

SUMMARY
This paper provides a progress report on the public engagement relevant to the Cultural 
Strategy including the development and implementation plans for an online 
questionnaire, inviting residents from across the district to participate in the consultation 
process. 

11

Agenda Item 7

mailto:michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:laura.chambers@investsk.co.uk
mailto:P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee considers the questionnaire, through the eyes of potential users, reviewing 
the content and ease of completing the questionnaire. 

Members are requested to offer suggestions for any improvements prior to wider 
implementation and distribution. 

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 Further to the report considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 10 
July 2018   (iSK003), the timeframe for the delivery of the Public Engagement 
element of the Cultural Strategy was postponed to enable some initial work to be 
carried out with Stakeholders, Strategic Partners, groups and individuals, 
focusing initially on Arts and Heritage. This would provide important contextual 
background information from delivery partners and creative artists, thereby 
establishing some key further considerations in advance of wider conversations 
with residents.  

1.2 The following dates have been identified as initial Stakeholder/Strategic Partner 
meetings:

23 January 2019 7pm-9pm Stamford Arts Centre Ballroom
29 January 2019 7pm-9pm Grantham Guildhall Arts Centre Ballroom
31 January 2019 7pm-9pm Bourne Corn Exchange
12 February 2019 7pm-9pm The Deepings - Oddfellows Hall, Market Deeping

1.3 A contemporary branding design was created with the Council’s in-house 
designer and approved by the Leader for use and distribution.

1.4 Working with colleagues from Stamford and Grantham Arts Centres, Bourne 
Corn Exchange and with the assistance of Members, lists of potential invitees 
were established and they have been invited to attend the stakeholder sessions.  

1.5 The dates have also been shared through social media, the Council’s website 
and through the Communications team with potential attendees from Arts and 
Heritage groups and organisations.  

1.6 The process for extending invitations is ongoing. Interested parties have been 
requested to register their interest in attending any of the dates in order for seats 
to be allocated. Should demand exceed capacity, then alternative dates will be 
arranged.

1.7 The events will provide a platform for attendees to express their views on how 
the Cultural Strategy might work for them.

1.8 Wider Public Engagement
Work has also been progressed to develop an online questionnaire for Public 
Engagement with residents. 

1.9 The initial draft, submitted with this paper, has been prepared with the support of 
colleagues in Communications, Corporate Operations, Arts and Heritage.

12



1.10 The questionnaire seeks to establish some baseline context from respondents, 
together with their views on the delivery of services across the Cultural sector 
and suggestions for improvements and future development.

1.11 It is envisaged that face-to-face conversations, as part of reaching out to the 
widest possible demographic, will take a similar format, with the potential, in 
these scenarios, to drill down further into responses.

1.12 Follow ups with schools across the District will take place over late January/early 
February to establish some potential venues for local visits – offering Experience 
days to children/staff/parents and local residents.

1.13 The events will offer practical sessions and provide promotional information from 
all service areas. These could include: dance and drama workshops, poetry and 
literature workshops, Heritage ‘tours’ etc. They will be created around the 
capacity and resources available. Deeping St James’ Primary has already 
expressed a desire to take part in the pilot dates and the Head of Arts has met 
with the Headteacher to discuss further.

1.14 Revised Timeframe
Members of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview Committee had 
expressed concern over delays commencing this work. In light of this a revised 
schedule is shown below.

June/July 2018 Determine proposed outline brief for project, identify 
and agree potential delivery mechanism 
Completed 10 July 2018

Autumn 2018 Planning and preparation
January/February 2019 Stakeholder/Strategic Partner meetings.

Online questionnaire goes live
Promotional initiatives – social media and press
Commence wider project delivery (e.g. Arts About 
Town event in Stamford on 22 February)

March/April/May 2019 Ongoing Public Engagement project delivery. District–
wide workshops and fact-finding, beginning with a 
short series of pilot sessions (venues to be confirmed) 
to trial, refine and inform the delivery process
Attendance at events – including the Deepings Literary 
Festival
Ongoing Evaluations and review of data

June 2019 Draft Cultural Strategy document produced for 
comments and review.  This will commence with an in-
house review within the Council, including colleagues 
across all service areas.

Report to Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Focus group of Stakeholders and Strategic Partners, 
for comment on draft Cultural Strategy document.

July 2019 Final draft of the Cultural Strategy document produced 
for sign off, by Cabinet.  

13



August/September 2019 Cultural Strategy document published and distributed

The Cultural Strategy will be the start of an ongoing 
process of review and development, guiding future 
business planning and the action plans of Heads of 
Service.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 None

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 Funding to deliver the public engagement process has already been agreed and 
allocated.

3.2 The proposed Public Engagement workshop programme delivered between 
March and May 2019 will aim to achieve a fully inclusive project and (in order to 
optimise reach and quality) will be delivered over an extended period. This 
approach will provide meaningful engagement opportunities through focused 
responses from residents across the authority. 

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:  

Category Risk Action / Controls
Ensuring the widest 
representation of 
residents across South 
Kesteven.

The proposed Public Engagement process, has 
identified a schedule for making direct approaches 
to stakeholders, partners groups and organisations 
across the District.

Limited responses to 
completing the online 
questionnaire

An extensive Marketing Plan will be followed, 
working in collaboration with the Communications 
team, Members and colleagues within the authority. 
Attendees at the Stakeholder meetings will be 
encouraged to engage their members and 
supporters. 

Ensuring a correct and 
thorough consultation 
process - potential for 
delays to the proposed 
timeframe for delivery

The review of customer feedback and responses 
will be ongoing throughout the process to ensure a 
draft document can be issued according to the 
outline proposed schedule illustrated in this report. 
Timings for inclusion at relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny and Cabinet meetings, will need to be 
coordinated in good time with relevant officers and 
Members and included in the schedule of meetings 
as required.  

14



5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 Relevant current procedures will be followed regarding safeguarding matters in 
relation the delivery of any workshop programmes within schools.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 The costs of undertaking the consultation and public engagement are to be met 
from approved budgetary resources that have been allocated to InvestSK.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 This report demonstrates the discharge of an Overview and Scrutiny function as 
set out in Part 6.1.1 of the Constitution of the Council. There are no legal 
implications arising from this report.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 Effective cultural services are known to have positive effects on people’s    
general health and well-being which in turn has positive effects on other services.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1 - Draft Cultural Strategy Questionnaire. 
Document subject to design, branding and final amendments.

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 iSK003 – Cultural Strategy:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20777/

11.2 SLPD013 – Cultural Strategy:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18977/SLPD013

15

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18977/SLPD013


This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX 1 

Draft Cultural Strategy Public Engagement Questionnaire 

Please note: this document is in draft format for Review by the Committee 

 

Join the conversation 

Exploring the cultural landscape of South Kesteven 

 

Introduction 

The Council would like to know what people enjoy doing with their spare time, where they go and 

how they might be encouraged to do more in the future.  

We are asking local people, clubs, groups and other organisations to “join the conversation” and help 

shape the development of a new cultural strategy for the district of South Kesteven. 

Before we go any further however, we would like to know your thoughts. What could the council do 

to encourage you to attend an event, or do more sport or physical activity? Do you need to know more 

about what is already available or are other barriers preventing you from taking part? Would your 

organisation benefit from its events being promoted more widely, or would you like to know more 

about the venues or locations that may be available to your club or group?  

By sparing us a few moments to answer these questions, you will help us to draw up a cultural strategy 

that includes and reflects the views and needs of everyone who lives here. It should only take you 

about xx minutes. 

Thank you. 

PLEASE NOTE THIS CONSULTATION CLOSES ON FRIDAY 31 MAY 2019. 

The themes of the Cultural Strategy 

SKDC has identified four areas it would like to focus on going forward, which are: 

 Arts  

 Heritage  

 Sport and physical activity 

 The Sciences   

1. Please use the space below to tell us about anything else you think the strategy could 

include: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



 
 

What you do now 

To help the council draw up a strategy that reflects the activities and aspirations of everyone who 

lives here, we would like to know a bit more about what you like to do in your spare time.  

 

2. What types of things do you like to do in your spare time?  These could include: going to the 

gym, attending concerts, visiting heritage sites, attending an event or exhibition, going to the 

cinema, visiting the theatre etc. Or you might like going for a walk, gardening, or going out 

for a meal with friends. 

Please use the space below to tell us. Your list can be as long or as short as you wish. 

 

3. Do you take part in any kind of activity or represent an organisation which has links to 

science, the arts, heritage or sports and physical activity? Examples could be: belonging to or 

representing a local historical society, attending a pottery class, U3A, a yoga group or a 

tennis club. Please tick all that apply. 

Yes, I represent a club/group/organisation which has links to science, the arts, heritage or 

sports and physical activity. 

Yes, I belong to or attend a club/group/organisation which has links to science, the arts, 

heritage or sports and physical activity. 

Yes, I take part in an activity which has links with science, the arts, heritage or sports and 

physical activity but I don’t belong to a group, club or organisation 

No I don’t take part in any activity with links to science, the arts, heritage or sports and 

physical activity  

 

4. If yes, what do you do? (Please include the name of the clubs/organisations if appropriate) 

                   Activity/ (ies)  

   

     Names of club(s)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

18



 
 

How you find out about events or activities  

To make the most of the channels of communication that are available, it would help the 

Council if you were able to identify which channels you are likely to use.  

5. Where do you tend to find out (or have found out in the past) about events or activities 

which have links to the arts, heritage, science or sports and physical activity? Please tick all 

that apply. 

Council’s social media channels (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram etc.) 

Council’s website  

Other organisations’ websites or social media channels (including the Guildhall Arts Centre, 

Stamford Arts Centre and One Life)  

Council’s publication e.g. Arts Centre brochure, SKTODAY 

Local press 

Other publications – for example a village newsletter or poster 

Word of mouth 

Other, please specify 

 

 

 

Where you go to take part 

The Council currently provides 2 arts centres in Grantham and Stamford, a Corn Exchange in Bourne 

and leisure centres in each of the four main towns in the district. We know that people take part in a 

wide variety of activities in a number of different locations including private gyms, village halls, pubs 

and other facilities. As part of the “cultural conversation” we would like to know a bit more about all 

the places where local people are taking part in an activity or attending an event. 

6. Where do you go to take part in an activity which has links to the arts, heritage, science or 

sports and physical activity?  

I go to the following places 

 

 

The activity I take part in is not 

based in a specific location 

I don’t take part in any activities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

19



 
Frequency of participation 

To help us measure the impact of the changes that will be introduced when the cultural strategy is 

adopted, we would like to know how often you participate in an event or activity at the moment. 

7. How often do you participate in an event or activity which is linked to the arts, heritage, 

science or sport?  

Daily 

Weekly 

Fortnightly 

Monthly 

Within the last six months 

Within the last year 

Longer ago 

I never take part in any events or activities  

 

 

Not being able to participate 

 

The Council would like to know if there is anything in particular that is stopping you from taking part 

in an activity or attending an event.  

 

8. What is preventing you from taking part? Please tick all that apply. 

Lack of transport 

Work or study commitments 

No free time 

Costs of participating  

Childcare availability 

Health concerns 

Lack of awareness about what’s available 

Location/venue 

Disability 

Not enough choice 

The quality of the facilities 

The times the events or activities are provided 

I don’t want to go on my own 

Other, please specify 

Prefer not to say 

20



 
 

Help to take part or do more 

9. What could the council do to encourage you (or the organisation you represent) to take part, 

or to do more? This might include the council doing more to promote various events and 

activities across the district, or signposting clubs to funding that is available, for example.  

Please use the space below to tell us: 

 

 

 

Your contribution 

The Council is keen that the ideas, enthusiasm and requirements of individuals and groups are 

reflected in the strategy and would like to know if there is anything you and/or the club or 

organisation you represent would be able to contribute towards this process.  

10. How could you or the club/organisation you represent, contribute towards the development 

and implementation of the Cultural Strategy? This might include sharing events on social 

media, being a member of the project team, agreeing to join a database of contacts, 

uploading information about your club’s activities onto a central portal etc.  Please use the 

space below to tell us. 

 

 

 

 

We would also like to know if there are any venues in your local area that are not used as much as 

they could be. This might include your local village hall or social club building for example. 

11. Please use the space below to tell us about them. 

 

 

 

Anything else 

12. If you have any questions or have any other comments to make about the Council’s cultural 

strategy, please use the space below to tell us about them: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



 
If you would like a response to your comment or query, or are interested in contributing towards 

the development of the cultural strategy, please give us your contact details.  

Please be assured that they will only be used to contact you about these matters. They will not 

be used for any other purpose or passed onto anyone else. Any information you give us will be 

treated in accordance with the Council’s Data Protection Policy 2018.  

 

Name 

Address 1 

Address 2 

Village/Town 

Postcode 

Email 

Phone  

 

Demographic Information 

To help us make sure that we have taken the views of all of our stakeholders into account we would 

like to know a bit more about you. Please be assured that any information you give us will only be 

used to establish if the views we have collected are representative of the community as a whole in 

terms of gender, age, ethnicity etc. They will not be used to identify you in any way or be passed 

onto anyone else. 

13. What is your gender?  

Male/ Female/ Transgender/ Prefer not to say 

14. Which of the following best describes your age? 

 Under 18/ 18 to 24/ 25 to 34/ 35 to 44/ 45 to 54/ 55 to 64/ 65 and over/ prefer not to say 

15. Do you consider yourself to have a disability?  

Yes/ No/ Prefer not to say 

16. Which of the following best describes your ethnicity?   

White or White British/ Black or Black British/ Asian or Asian British/ Of mixed race/ Prefer 

not to say/ Other, please specify  

 

17. Please tell us the first four digits of your postcode. 

NG23/NG31/NG32/NG33/NG34/PE6/PE9/PE10/ Prefer not to say, other-please specify 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



 
18. Are you responding as an individual, a parish clerk or parish councillor, or on behalf of a club, 

group or other organisation? Please tick all that apply: 

An individual/ a parish clerk or parish councillor/ on behalf of a club, group or other 

organisation/ prefer not to say/ other, please specify 

 

 

We know your spare time is precious. Having lots of choices about what you do with it is an 

important part of making somewhere a great place to live. By taking the time to tell us what you 

think, you are helping to shape and develop a cultural strategy that reflects and responds to the 

needs of everyone in our area. 

Thank you.  

PLEASE NOTE THIS CONSULTATION CLOSES ON FRIDAY 31 MAY 2019 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



CULTURE AND VISITOR ECONOMY  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee, 
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Culture & Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

24 January 2019

Scoping Sports Development Activities (iSK0010)

Decision
Proposal: Overview and Scrutiny Report

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee 
The Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Michael Cross, Head of Arts, Invest SK 
E-mail: michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk  Tel: 01476 406129        
Date: 2 January 2019

Steve Bowyer, Chief Executive Officer – Invest SK
E-mail: Steve.bowyer@investsk.co.uk  Tel: 01476 406175        
Date: 8 January 2019

Paul Thomas, Strategic Director
E-mail: P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk   Tel:  01476 406162        
Date: 11 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council
E-Mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 11 January 2019

SUMMARY
Part of the development of the Council’s Cultural Strategy includes Sports and this 
paper provides background to the creation of a Sports Development Officer function on 
a 2 year fixed term contact which will be a new function within InvestSK.

The paper provides some early considerations for the delivery of this function within the 
wider context of creating the Cultural Strategy. 

25

Agenda Item 8

mailto:michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Steve.bowyer@investsk.co.uk
mailto:P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee considers the scoping of what will be required on Sports in relation to 
development of the Culture Strategy to inform the work to be undertaken by the Sports 
Development Officer over the next two year period and the potential added value of the 
role to other areas of the Council’s work.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Cultural Strategy will include four key areas – Arts, Heritage, Sports and The 
Sciences.

1.2 The Council’s current contract with an independent leisure provider delivering 
sports and physical activity initiatives has centred on work in and around the 
leisure centre buildings. This provision, delivered by the Corporate Operations 
Team in collaboration with 1Life includes the David Ross Education Trust 
summer games, Paralympic national table tennis championships, Chandlers 
Table Tennis Club of Grantham 4 star tournament.  The 2019 programme will 
include: ASA Lincolnshire County Championships (Swimming), the Rotary 
Swimarathon and regional and national cadet force competitions in athletics, 
swimming and football.

1.3 Groups and individuals working outside of the four leisure centres have not had 
a designated officer available for ongoing communication and support, providing 
the link to wider District engagement. 

1.4 The level of engagement across the District has been inconsistent, lacking 
overall strategic direction and too great a focus on ad hoc activities.

1.5 In order to create an effective network and more regular communication with 
groups and individuals in relation to sports and physical activity, the appointment 
of a designated officer (the Sports Development Officer) was identified as a 
priority appointment.

1.6 It has been determined that the public engagement element of the Cultural 
Strategy will commence with a focus on Arts and Heritage. This will allow time 
for the new Sports Development Officer to establish connections across the 
District, from a range of groups and individuals – creating a database for future 
consultation and inclusion in the development of the final Cultural Strategy 
document. Gathering external views across this services area is important to 
ensure appropriate development of sports and physical activity. This will ensure 
the Cultural Strategy is fit for purpose and provides the types of activities required 
across the district. 

1.7 The Cultural Strategy online questionnaire will capture feedback relating to sports 
and physical activity. The Sports Development officer will engage in specific 
consultation with Stakeholders and Strategic Partners, mirroring the current work 
of the Arts and Heritage teams.

26



1.8      The Role 

In addition to making a contribution to the development of the Cultural Strategy 
the recruitment process identified that the Sports Development Officer will work 
collaboratively with local sports clubs and other organisations to support and 
encourage them to:  

 Provide access to the wider community
 Develop safe, child friendly junior groups
 Liaise with schools to develop greater collaboration and shared skills and 

resources
 Link services to district-wide initiatives and strategies
 Seek validation through Clubmark/quality accreditation 

Prior to creating the function, it was unlikely specific progress would be made in 
any of these areas. 

With the appointment already made, the Head of Arts is seeking Members views 
on the scope of the function, to ensure maximum effectiveness over the initial 
length of the contract.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Creating a commission and working with a specialist sports provider was also 
considered, but was rejected. It was decided that having an independent 
designated officer, recruited directly for the role, would provide the necessary 
skills, experience and personal skills required for the task. It would also provide 
a direct link to the wider Cultural Strategy development, with officers able to 
support the work of other service areas. Furthermore it was considered that a 
directly recruited appointee would have greater opportunity to work as a regular 
part of the wider team within InvestSK, with the potential for developing cross-
cutting projects and cross-discipline networking, thereby creating added value 
and flexibility.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 This appointment is on a fixed-term basis for two years and funding for the post 
has already been agreed and allocated. 

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:  

Category Risk Action / Controls
The role is not currently 
appropriately focused in terms of 
wider potential engagement. 

To establish the priorities for the role in 
consultation with the Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

27



5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 Relevant current procedures will be followed regarding safeguarding matters in 
relation the delivery of any work within schools.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 The approved budget framework for 2018/19 and the proposed budgetary 
proposals for 2019/20 includes budget allocations that can be utilised to fund the 
activities contained in this report if approved.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 This report demonstrates the discharge of an Overview and Scrutiny function as 
set out in Part 6.1.1 of the Constitution of the Council. There are no legal 
implications arising from this report. 

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 There are none.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 None

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 SLPD013 – Cultural Strategy:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18977/SLPD013

11.2 iSK003 – Cultural Strategy:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20777/

28

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18977/SLPD013


CULTURE AND VISITOR ECONOMY 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Nick Robins
Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

24 January 2019

Visitor Economy (iSK0012)

Decision
Proposal: Overview and Scrutiny Report

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Nick Robins 
Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Andrew Norman, Head of Visitor Economy
E-mail: andrew@investsk.co.uk  Tel: 07778 747271          
Date: 10 January 2019

Steve Bowyer, Chief Executive Officer – Invest SK
E-mail: Steve.bowyer@investsk.co.uk    Tel: 01476 406175        
Date: 11 January 2019

Paul Thomas, Strategic Director
E-mail: P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk  Tel: 01476 406162        
Date: 11 January 2019

Councillor Nick Robins 
Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy
E-mail: nick.robins@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 12 January 2019

SUMMARY
This paper provides an outline of the work proposed by the Visitor Economy Team for 
the next year extending the range of foundation activities since the formation of the visitor 
economy team that commenced in December 2017, and seeks the Committee’s views 
on this.

29

Agenda Item 9

mailto:andrew@investsk.co.uk
mailto:Steve.bowyer@investsk.co.uk
mailto:P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:nick.robins@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee endorse the work plan of the Visitor Economy Team for the forthcoming year.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Visitor Economy (VE) team has been working to promote the district to 
both residents and visitors from further afield. Extensive work has been 
undertaken around delivering a public-facing brand and offer running 
alongside developing products and services for stakeholders across the 
district.

1.2 During the year the following major projects have been undertaken:
• Promotional trailer – deployed to events since April
• Branding – delivered October 
• District film – delivered in October
• Established social media channels – rolling introduction started in 

November 
• Website – delivered in December
• A4 Visitor guide – delivered in January
• RAF100 campaign – delivered through 2018
• District wide VE forums
• Membership scheme launched
• Travel trade shows 
• Collaborative relationships with surrounding districts
• Bourne CiCLE Festival scoped and launched

1.3 Looking forward to 2019/20 the VE team are proposing the following activities:

Developing a number of new visitor information points:

Downtown: The directors of Downtown have offered a substantial space 
on the first floor of their garden centre adjacent to the café. The area will 
be made available without charge, branded with the VE brand, & 
Downtown will also provide a monitor for showing films of the district.

Wyndham Park: A space has been created in Wyndham Park to display 
VE information.

Deepings library: Discussions are underway to facilitate a display area for 
leaflets to promote VE businesses.

Promotional Trailer: To continue to deploy the promotional trailer to events 
across the district and beyond.

District Leaflet: Develop a district-wide leaflet with district map for visitors 
to pick up as an alternative to the main visitor guide for specific use at 
events where carrying the visitor guide might not be an option.

30



District film: Produce a further short film following the success of this year’s 
production which has been viewed in excess of 10,000 on line/social 
media, to focus on a particular aspect of SK’s offer. The specific theme of 
the film has been discussed but as yet not decided.

Membership: The membership offer was launched this year, with 
considerable support. A great deal of time-consuming, but highly 
productive work, is required to businesses with the scheme and create 
lasting relationships with business owners and managers.

Group travel:  Developing imaginative and varied itineraries for groups and 
associated travel trade to adopt raise the profile of the district and the 
visitor footfall.

Visitor guide: Work will need to start relatively soon on the 2020/21 visitor 
guide. The 2019/20 visitor guide was delivered to the VE team on 8th 
January and has already had a wider and positive reception.

  
Social Media: The VE team will be looking to step up its social media 
presence to support the businesses across the district offering a more 
sophisticated support than was previously possible.

Networking: In the spring and autumn it is proposed to hold gatherings, 
across the district, for those involved in the visitor economy to provide 
mutual support, a forum for general discussion and specific training on 
new technologies, and to gain feedback on market conditions.

Aviation Heritage: The VE team is developing a plan to promote the strong 
WWII history and heritage of the district and in particular mark the 75th 
anniversary of Arnhem & D-Day. The RAF100 campaign has generated 
considerable interest in the RAF and its local history and a longer term 
legacy plan to include memorial tree planting is also being considered.  

South Kesteven Walking Festival (SKWF): The VE team propose to work 
with the SKWF team to develop further walks around the district 
particularly around Bourne and the Deepings.

Bourne CiCLE Festival (BCF): The VE team along with Paul Stokes and 
his team have been tasked to run the BCF - based in Bourne but 
circumnavigating the district over the weekend of the 31st Aug – 1st Sep.

Explorers Road: Working with Visit Britain and many other partners to 
develop the A1 into an iconic route initially targeted at German visitors at 
this stage and if successful the project will be extended to the Netherlands.

Cycle England Project: This is a project also under the Visit Britain and 
Discover England Fund to develop cycling routes across Yorkshire, and 
north Lincolnshire, which will include a number of routes down and into 
SK.

31



Advertising & Marketing: Develop a strategic marketing plan to raise the 
profile of the area as a destination to visit and to enjoy and make the most 
of as residents. The plan will need to be carefully refined to target specific 
markets given the scale of finances available.   

Strategic Relationships: The VE team will continue to build relationships 
with:
Discover Rutland & Rutland County Council.
Visit Lincoln & support the visitlincolnshire website
Tourism Officers across the county
Town councils across the district
Business groups
The GLLEP

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Not investing resources into the local visitor economy and thereby undermining 
the potential for local attractions and related businesses to contribute to South 
Kesteven economic future.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The resources of the visitor economy team will be guided and aligned to the 
priorities of the work programme. Budgets are included in the main InvestSK 
funding bids. 

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
Reduced levels of engagement 
from attractions and VE 
businesses will reduce the impact 
of this plan. 

Ensure collaboration and 
collaboration from local partners 
through proactive engagement and 
outreach.

Finite finance constraints scale of 
marketing, promotion and 
activities.

Carefully manage and maximise 
budgets; seek collaborative funding 
from partners.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 None

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None

32



7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 Included in the budget proposals for 2019/20 there is an allocation of £800k for 
core funding for InvestSK to take forward their business plan. The activities 
outlined in this report are in relation to the proposed allocation of £120k of the 
core funding amount.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 This report demonstrates the discharge of an Overview and Scrutiny function as 
set out in Part 6.1.1 of the Constitution of the Council. There are no legal 
implications arising from this report.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None 

10. APPENDICES

10.1 None 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 None 

33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 15 November 2018
	7 Cultural Strategy Engagement - Progress and Consultation
	Appendix 1_Cultural Strategy Questionniare Draft Copy for Review

	8 Scoping Sports Development Activities
	9 Visitor Economy Activities

